EL RANCHO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Joint Meeting of the Board of Education and the

Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee

Conducting the District's Business in Public

ERUSD Conference Room (Student Services Building) 9333 Loch Lomond Drive Pico Rivera, CA 90660

September 19, 2013 6:00 p.m.

MINUTES OF BOARD ACTIONS

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Delia Alvidrez, President, at 6:05 p.m.

1.1 ROLL CALL – Members of the Board of Education

Delia Alvidrez, President Rita Jo Ramirez, Vice President (absent) Rachel Canchola, Clerk Alfred Renteria, Jr., Member Dr. Joseph Rivera, Member

1.2 ROLL CALL – Members of the Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee

Dr. Aurora Villon, Chairperson John Chavez, Member Vincent Chavez, Member Esther Mejia, Member Dr. Teresa Merino, Member Dr. Linda Vargas, Member

1.3 ROLL CALL – Members of the Administrative Cabinet

Martin Galindo, Superintendent Leticia Covarrubias, Chief Business Officer, Business Services Carlos Jimenez, Director, Maintenance and Operations

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

RECORDER Sandy Watkins

VISITORS Register No. 04-2013/2014

ERUSD Joint Meeting of the Board of Education and the Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee: September 19, 2013

3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Recommendation is made that the Agenda be adopted as submitted.

Motion: Renteria Second: Rivera Vote: 4-0 PASSED

(Ramirez-absent)

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Blue speaker's card)

This is the time of the meeting when members of the public may address matters that <u>are on the agenda only</u>. In the interest of time, individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. The Board shall limit the total time for each agenda item to a maximum of fifteen (15) minutes.

None

5. <u>NEW BUSINESS – ACTION ITEMS</u>

5.1 SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE

A. Approved Service Agreement with California School Boards Association for Agenda *Online*, a web-based service to facilitate the development and distribution of Board meeting agendas. Service Agreement shall take effect on the date CSBA receives the signed agreement and payment of \$3,000.00, payable from District General Funds for a term of one year with an option to renew annually.

Motion: Renteria Second: Alvidrez Vote: 4-0 PASSED

(Ramirez-absent)

6. STUDY SESSION

- **6.1** Facilities Master Plan Development Presentation by Gary Christofi, Christofi Architects, Inc.
 - Mr. Gary Christofi, Christofi Architects, Inc. and Mr. John Tegtmeyer, TDM Architects, presented information on how a Facilities Master Plan is developed. The following questions and comments from Committee and Board were addressed:
 - 1. If we are upgrading just two areas of a school, does the entire fire alarm system need to be upgraded? *No, just those that are being modernized.*
 - 2. It is crucial to have all stakeholders involved in the master planning process.
 - 3. Are building aesthetics considered when developing a master plan? The look and feel of the entire campus as well as the overall district is considered when modernizing.
 - 4. Is it possible to have a District Master Plan and separate site master plans? *Individual plans for each school are considered to be a part of the District Master Plan.*

6. <u>STUDY SESSION</u>

- **6.1** Facilities Master Plan Development Presentation by Gary Christofi, Christofi Architects, Inc. (continued)
 - 5. How long does it take to develop a Master Plan? Normally, four to six months.
 - 6. Is there any consideration in creating/building new facilities instead of doing improvements to older, outdated facilities? *Consideration needs to be given to the age of the facility; typically educational facilities have a life span on 50-75 years.*
 - 7. Does building a new facility or repairing an older facility require a cost analysis? *Typically a cost analysis is done by the architect with a structural engineer and cost estimator.*
 - 8. Need to ensure that buildings meet seismic codes and regulations.
 - 9. Who would lead the process of developing a Master Plan? The Superintendent oversees the committees which are comprised of district staff, the architect and project manager.
 - 10. The current pool project at El Rancho High is it being built to competition standards? We are building a brand new pool which will meet CIF competition regulations. Drawings, including dimensions, will be made available.
 - 11. Can a concession stand be built near the pool? *This can be considered for the future*.
 - 12. Do we have blue prints and plans so any architect hired by the District has access to them? Paper blue prints are stored in the vault in the Maintenance department. We currently have a combination of paper and electronic plans.
 - 13. How do we make sure that everyone is in sync through the Master Plan development process? It's important that ideas are brought forward from the beginning in order to remain focused.
- **6.2** Items tabled from the June 26, 2013 Joint Board / CBOC Meeting:
 - 2011/2012 Annual Report Recommendation #3

 The Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee must have a full understanding of the projects funded by the bond(s) and the process used to prioritize and complete these projects. The development of a Measure EE Facilities Master Plan can facilitate the understanding of how and when the projects will be completed and who will be responsible to ensure the satisfactory and timely completion of these projects.

This item was addressed by Mr. Christofi's presentation.

6. <u>STUDY SESSION</u>

- 6.2 Items tabled from the June 26, 2013 Joint Board / CBOC Meeting: (continued)
 - 2011/2012 Annual Report Recommendation #7
 The Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee recommends that the District consider increasing the number of CBOC members and/or develops a list of alternate members. During the period covered by this report, several members resigned and their positions remained vacant for several months.

Recommendation was made to not make any changes at this time due to the requirement of new members needing to fit a particular category.

- **6.3** Development of the Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Handbook
 - A copy of the draft handbook was shared with the Board and Cabinet. Further refinement of the handbook will be done at future CBOC meetings.
- **6.4** School Site Visitations
 - Dr. Villon shared that the committee have visited school sites to view the
 facilities and status of modernization projects. She questioned where
 computer equipment from the closed schools had been moved to. Dr. Villon
 asked if portable buildings at closed schools can be used to accommodate
 over-crowding at current schools.
- **6.5** Receive Information on Internal Audit of Pacifica Services
 - Leticia Covarrubias presented the findings of an internal audit that was conducted of Pacifica Services related to contracts and expenditures. The Board and Committee requested further information and or action from District personnel as follows:
 - 1. Conduct a comprehensive audit.
 - 2. Provide a specific list of payments made.
 - 3. Schedule a meeting with Leticia Covarrubias and Alfred Renteria to review documents.
- Receive Information on Amendment of Board Item No. 15.4 E, approved April 18, 2013 implementation of deferred maintenance summer projects. Estimated project cost is \$900,000.00, payable from Deferred Maintenance and Capital Funds Measure "A" General Obligation Bond Funds.
 - Martin Galindo shared legal opinion on whether or not projects submitted for approval meet the criteria for bond funding.

ERUSD Joint Meeting of the Board of Education and the Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee: September 19, 2013

ADJOURNMENT – 9:50 p.m.

Motion: Renteria Second: Rivera Vote: 4-0 PASSED

(Ramirez-absent)